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Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. Mr.

Speaker, I move we pass this bill temporarily.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Hearing no objections we’ll pass this bill

temporarily. [gavel]

Will the Clerk please call Calendar number
551.
CLERK:

On Page 36, House Calendar 551, Favorable
Report of the Joint Standing Committee on

Judiciary. Substitute Senate Bill 82, excuse me,

ég@*_AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE
HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercyak, the esteemed Chairman
of the Labor Committee. 8ir, you have the floor.
REP. TERCYAK (26%%):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. I move for
acceptance of the Joint Committee’s Favorable
Report and passage of the bill in concurrence with
the Senate.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

The question is acceptance of the Joint

Committee’s Favorable Report and passage of the
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bill in concurrence with the Senate.
Represenﬁative Tercyak, you have the floor.
REP. TERCYAK (26%):

Thank you very much, sir. This is a bill that
does just what it says it will. TIt’s to help the
interns from workplace harassment and
discrimination. It defines interns, it prohibits
an employer from discriminating against or sexually
harassing interns or people who may - who are
applying to be interns. Thus it gives the interns
prbtection similar to those paid employees. The -
Mr. Speaker, if it pleases you, the Clerk has an
amendment, LCO number 6178. I would ask the Clerk
to please call the amendment and I be granted leave
of the Chamber to summarize.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Will the Clerk please call LCO 6178, which
will be designated, or has been designated Senate
Amendment Schedule “A.”7

CLERK:

Senate Amendment “A” LCO 6178, introduced by

Looney, Duff and Gomes.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
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The Representative seeks leave of the Chamber
to summarize the amendment. 'Is there objection to
summarization? Is there objection? Hearing none,
Representative Tercyak, you may proceed with
summarization.

REP. TERCYAK (26%%):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. The
amendment.does a couple of things to clarify the
underlying bill. It makes clear that employer
include the state and any poiitical subdivision of
the state who provides a position for an intern.
And then you’ll notice that almost everywhere that
it says a person. That word is struck and
individual, or an iﬁdividual ig put in instead.
This is done, in part, so that when - after Line 20
we‘can define person to mean one or more
individuals, partnerships, associatioﬁs, different

kinds of companies. And that explains the

-amendment. I think it makes a good bill better.

Through you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN;
Would you like to move for adoption, sir?

REP. TERCYAK (26%9):

004748
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Yes I would, Mr. Speaker. I move for
adoption.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

The question before the Chamber is the
adoption of Senate Amendment Schedule “A.” Will
you remark on the amendment Representative
Rutigliano of the 12379, sir,‘?ou have the floor.
REP. RUTIGLIANO (123%9):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I wanted to concur
with the Chairman of the Labor Committee that this
is a good amendment. It clarifies the bill and T
rise in support. Thank you.

DEPUTY SPEAKERlRYAN:

Thank you, sir. Will you remark further?
Representative Smith of the 108", sir?

REP. SMITH (108%"):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. A gquestion to the
proponent of the amendment, please.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

On the amendment, éir.

' REP. SMITH (108%%):
Yes.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
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Representative Tercyak please prepare
yourself. Represgentative Smith.
REP. SMITH (108™"):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. So I noticed now that
the state and a political subdivision thereof would
be deemed an employer under this bill if it passes.
I hoticed in the underlying bill itself that if one
- if an intern wanted to make a complaint, he or
she could do so to the Commission on Human Rights
and Opporﬁunities.

I'm not sure how that would all work with the
state being an employer and then having an agency
of the state hear a claim made by an intern. So
I'm just wondering how the mechanics of the bill
would now work with this amendment. Through vyou,
Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercyak.
REP. TERCYAK (26%%):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. As I stated
earlier, this will give interns some protections
that are presently enjoyed by state employees,
which includes appeal to the Commission of Human

Rights and Opportunities. It will work exactly as
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it does presently for tens of thousands of state
employees. Through-you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAkER RYAN:
Representative Smith.
REP. SMITH (108%F):

I appreciate the Chairman’s clarification of
that. So I guess there_is no conflict of interest
between the agency of this state and, in this case,
a — the body politic of the State of Connectiéut.
.So I guess if the practice is in place already and
it’s working well will continue to do so. Thank
you for the.clarification.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Thank you, sir. Any remark further on the
amendment before us? Representative Miner, the 66"
District,lsir.

REP. MINER (66"):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Good afternoon. If I
might also, just a couple of guestions on the
amendment, please, through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Please proceed, sir.

REP. MINER (66%"):
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So prior to the passage of this amendment, is
it that the classification of intern doesn’t fit
the eligibility of, let’s say, an employee?
Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercyak.
REP. TERCYAK (26"%):

That is correct. Through you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Miner.

REP. MINER (66%"):

So when it comes to any workplace activity
that might be viewed to be adversarial, hérassment,
sexual harassment and the like, 1f the infern had
beeh compensated in any way, would they have been
an employee? Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Repregentative Tercyak.
REP. TERCYAK (26%):

In the bill it is clear that interng are
unpaid. Through you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Miner.
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REP. MINER (66%%):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. So what this seeks to
do is to provide this same level of protection for
an.indiﬁidual that may be mentoring in a position,
may be shadowing in a position, without any
compensation similar to those that would be in
place for an employee. Is that correct? Through
you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercvak.
REP. TERCYAK (26™):

Through you, Mr. Speaker. That sounds like a
very good definition, an example of the
circumstances. Thank you, sir.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Repregentative Miner.
REP. MINER (66™):

And if the gentleman knows, is there any
distinction based on whether an intern is a citizen
of the United States or not a citizen of the United
States, as he understands it? Through you, please,
Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercyak.
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REP. TERCYAK (26%%):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. Aas I
understand it, there’s no distinction. Through
you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Miner.
REP. MINER (66""):

And so once passed this amendment then it
would be the gentleman’s understanding that they
would enjoy the same protections under Connecticut
law as citizens of the United étates if they were
to £1i11 this internship role? Through you, Mr.
Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercyak.
REP. TERCYAK (26%%):

Through you, Mr. Speaker. Yes. Thank you,
Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Miner.
REP. MINER (66"):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 2And I thank the
gentleman for his clarification.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
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Thank yvou, sir. Representative Tweedie of the
13*™,  sir, ydu have the floor.
REP. TWEEDIE (13°"):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Through you, Mr.
Speaker, a question to the proponent of the bill.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Please prbceed, sir.

REP. TWEEDIE (13%):

I have a guestion where it appears that we are
now giving - the goal of this is to give interns
the exact same rights as employees in the State of
Connecticut. 2Am I correct? Through you, Mr.
Speaker,

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercyak. But, I'm sorry,
Representative Tweedie, you are on the amendment,
right? We’re still on the amendment.

REP. TWEEDIE (13®%):

I could save - through - I could save this for
back on the main bill. Thank you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Okay. Thank you, sir. Will you remark
further on the amendment before us? Will you

remark further on the amendment before us? If not,
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I will try your minds. 2ll those in favor of the
amendment signify by saying aye?
SENATORS :
Aye.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Opposed, nay. The ayes have it and the

amendment is adopted. [gavel]

Will you remark further on the bill as
amended? Will yoﬁ remark further on the bill as
amended? Representative Tweedie of the 13!, did
you want to ask a guestion now?

REP. TWEEDIE (13%H):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. The question that I
have, through you, Mr. Speaker, the gquestion that I
have, in a civil - if this were to go to a civil
lawsuit, if an intern felt that this was an
egregious act and they wére for - working for a
senator or a particular representative, in a civil
lawsuit is the state now responsible in this civil
lawsuit or is it just the person named? The state
legislator, perhaps, or the state senator, perhaps,
whatever it may be. Through you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tercyak.
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REP. TERCYAK (26™):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. 1In order to
gsue the state somebody has to receive permission
from the claims commissioner.' Through you, Mr.
Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Tweedie.
REP. TWEEDIE (13™):

I thank the good representative for his
answer. Thank you, Mr., Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Thank you, Representative. Representative
Rutigliano of the 123*¢, sir, you have the floor.
REP. RUTIGLIANO (123%9);:

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, I wanted
to assure my colleagues that this was passed out of
the Labor Committee unanimously. This is an
excellent opportunity for some bipartisanship from
the Committee. We are affording protection for
those who are learning and working for free, the
same protections as if they were paid. This is a
good thing and a good bill and I urge its adoption.
Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
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Thank you, Representative. Representative
Miner of the 66, you have the floor.

REP. MINER (66"):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. It’s not often we on
this side of the aisle get up and actually say
something really exciting abéut a Labor Committee
bill, and I know we’ve worked very hard on issues
that we do agree on and some that we don’t agree
on, because that’s the way we operate on the Labor
Committee.

In this case, it just so happens to be that I
think we had universal agreement. Not in that
.anyone should have been overloocked before. 1In
fact, I think, for many of us it was hard to
imagine that the title of internship should have
granted you some less protection here in the State
of Connecticut. I always thought that protections
under human rights and opportunities and all.the
other, what I would say watchdog organizations we
have here in Connecticut, didn’t discriminate us as
to whether they could help you or_they couldn’t
help you based on whether you were an émployee,
whether you got paid by the hour, and so on. Mr.

Speaker, I was happy té hear the gentleman reply to
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my earlier questions with regard to citizenship,
because that’s also another issue that I think is
important to many people here.

It certainly is important to some that are
lobbying on behalf of what they believe is unfair
practices where they, as employees, somehow because
they are not U.S. citizens don’t fall under those
equal rights and protections with regard to not
only discrimination, but harassment, mistreatment,
you name it. It seems to run the gamut. So I join
the other gentlemen in supporting this bill. It is
a bill that we worked pretty hard on and I thank
the Chamber.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Thank you, Representative. Will you remark
further on the bill before this is amended? Will
you remark further before the bill is before us as
amended? If not, will staff and guests please come
to the Well of the House. Staff and guests please
come to the Well of the House. Will the members
please take your seats. The machine will be open.
CLERK:

[bell ringing] The House of Representatives is

voting by roll. The House of Representatives is
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voting by roll. Will members please return to the

Chamber immediately.

[pause]
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Have all members voted? Have all members
voted? If all the members have voted, the machine
will be locked, and the Clerk will take a tally.

The Clerk will please announce the tally.
CLERK:

Senate Bill 428 as amended by Senate “A"” in

concurrence with the Senate.

Total Number Voting 146
Necessary for Passage 74
Those voting Yea ' 146
Those voting Nay 0
Abgsent and not wvoting 5

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

The bill passes in concurrence with the

.Senate.

Will the Clerk please call Calendar Number 46.

CLERK:
Mr. Speaker, on Page 51, Calendar 46,

previously passed temporarily, Favorable Report of

H¥H &lLiq
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THE CHATR:
Seeing no objection, so ordered, sir. Senator Duff.
SENATOR DUFE:

Thank you, Madam President. Can we have order in the
Senate, please?

THE CHAIR:

Ladies and gentleman, ladies and gentleman, can we
keep our voilces down a little bit. Thank you. Senator
Duff.

SENATOR DUFF':

Thank you, Madam President. Madam President, would the
Clerk please call Calendar Page 15, Calendar 197,
Senate Bill 428.

THE CHATR:

Mr. Clerk.

CLERK:

Page 15, Calendar No. 197, substitute for Senate Bill
No. 428, AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE

HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION. Favorable Report from
the Committee on Labcr.

THE CHAIR:

Senatcocr Gomes. Good afterncon, sir. Senator Gomes,
ckay.

SENATOR GOMES:

Madam and Chairmen, I mcve the acceptance of the Joint
Committee’s Favorable Report and passage of the bill.

THE CHAIR:

Motion’s on acceptance and passage. Sir, will you -
will you comment?



| 000611
/w 71

SENATE April 14, 2015

SENATOR GOMES:

Yes, Senator. There is a, there is an amendment, LCO
6178. Will the Clerk call the amendment, please?

THE CEAIR:
Mr. Clerk.
CLERK:

LCO No. 6178 will be designated Senate Schedule “A.”

THE CHAIR:
Thank you. Senatcr Gomes.
SENATOR GOMES:

Madam President, I move the adoption of the amendment
and move to waive the reading.

THE CHATIR:
Mcotion’s on adoption. Will you proceed, sir.
SENATCR GOMES:

And at this time, I would yield the flcor to Senator
Winfield for comments.

THE CHATR:

Is this on the amendment, sir? Yeah.
SENATOR GOMES :

Cn the bill.

THE CHAIR:

This is on the amendment? We - yeah. Senator Winfield,
will you accept the yield on the amendment, please.

SENATOR GOMES:
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No — I move the adoption of the amendment.
THE CHATR:

Okay. Are there any comments on the amendment? Seeing
none, all those in favor of the amendment, please say
aye.

SENATORS:

Aye.

THE CHAIR:

Opposed? The amendment passes. Now, Senator Gomes.
SENATOR GOMES:

And at this time, thank you, Madam President, I move,
I yield for the comments from the good Senator,

THE CHAIR:
Senator Winfield, will you accept the yield, sir?
SENATOR WINFIELD:

Yes, thank you, Madam President. And thanks, Senator
Gomes, for the yield. I know Senator Gomes has done
some work on this bill. I’ve had the pleasure of
having been the Chair of Labor during this session.
And no longer being the pl - the Chair of Labor, I'm
net suggesting that’s a pleasure, but that is the
case.

This is a bill that deals with interns. Many of the
people around the circle know a lot zbout interns,
considering that we have them working with us here in
the Senate and in this building. Interns are in a
situaticn where oftentimes they are not sure of what
their rights are, and sometimes they don’t have
protections.

This bill seeks to protect those interns. It seeks to
look at discrimination and sexual harassment of
interns and define what an intern is in a very clear
way. It seeks to make sure that interns have the



000613
/iw 73

SENATE April 14, 2015

ability to access CHRO by having provisions for
discriminatory practices.

This is a bill that came out of the Committee 13-0. It
is a bill that makes all of those who work with us,
those interns, much safer than they otherwise might
be, and I would urge passage.

THE CHAIR:

Thank you. Will you remark? Will you remark? Senator
Duff.

SENATCR DUFE:

Thank you, Madam President. I’m scorry?
SENATOR WINFIELD:

Referral. That’s what we’re doing.
SENATOR DUFF:

Thank you, Madam President. Madam President, I move
that this item be referred to the Judiciary Committee.

THE CHATIR:

Seeing no objection, so ordered. Senator Duff.

SENATOR DUFF:

Thank you, Madam President. Madam President, would the
Clerk please call the items on the Consent Calendar in
that we might have a veote of the Consent Calendar
after that - immediately after. :

THE CHAIR:

Mr. Clerk, could you please call the roll — I mean,
the items on the Consent Calendar, please, and the
machine’1l]l be opened after.

CLERK:

From Senate Agenda 1, Senate Joint Resolution 46,
Senate Joint Resolution 47, Senate Joint Resolution
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If all members have voted, all members have voted, the
machine will be closed. Mr. Clerk, will vou call the
tally.
CLERK:

Senate Bill 926

Total Number Voting 33
" Necessary for Passage 17
Those voting Yea 289
Those voting Nay ' 4
Absent/not voting -3

THE CHAIR:

[gavel] The bill passes. Senator - oh. Okay.
Senator Duff. :

SENATOR DUFF:

Thank you, Madam President. Madam President, I’'d like
to add an item to our Consent Calendar please.

THE CHAIR:

Please proceed, sir.

SENATOR DUFF:

Thank you, Madam President. On Calendar Page 36,

Calendar 197, Senate Bill 428. I’'d like to place that
item on a Consent Calendar.

THE CHAIR:

So ordered, sir.

SENATOR DUFF:

Thank you, Madam President. And if we can now move to
Calendar Page 49, Calendar 184, Senate Bill 934
followed by - I’'d like to also place on the Go List
Calendar Page 19, Calendar 429, Senate Bill 1033.

THE CHAIR:
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THE CHAIR:

Mr. Clerk.

CLERK:

Consent Calendar No. 2, page 5, Calendar 182, Senate
Bill 964; page 6, Calendar No. 193, Senate Bill 1024;
page 19, Calendar No. 420, Senate Bill 999; page 19,
Calendar No. 429, Senate Bill 1033; page 31, Calendar
95, Senate Bill 925; page 33, Calendar No. 142, Senate
[Bill 1015; page 35, Calendar No. 178, Senate Bill 319;
page 36, Calendar No. 181, Senate Bill 940; page 36,
Calendar No. 197, Senate Bill 428; page 40, Calendar
No. 307, Senate Bill 253; page 41, Calendar 308,
jignate Bill 998; page 41, Calendar No. 325, Senate
Bill 454; and page 49, Calendar No. 184, Senate Bill

934,

THE CHAIR:

Correct. Mr. Clerk, will you please call for a roll
call vote on the second Consent Calendar. The
machine’1ll be opened.

CLERK:
An immediate roll call vote has been ordered in the

Senate. 2An immediate roll call vote has been ordered
in the Senate.

[pause]

THE CHAIR:

If all members have voted, all members have voted, the
machine will be closed. Mr. Clerk, will yvou please
call the tally. '

CLERK;

Consgent Calendar No. 2

Total Number Voting 33

Necessary for Adoption 17
Those voting Yea 33

Those voting Nay 0
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Absent/not voting 3

THE CHAIR:

Consent Calendar passes, [gavell Senator McLachlan, do
you stand for a personal privilege - a personal
announcement, sir?

SENATOR MCLACHLAN:

Thank you, Madam President. I stand for a point of
personal privilege.

THE CHAIR:
Please proceed, sgir.
SENATCR MCLACHLAN:

Thank you. A notation for the, [clears throat] excuse
me, a notation for the Journal and notification that,
[clears throat] excuse me, I was out of the Chamber
for legislative business and missed the vote on
Consent Calendar No. 1 and would like to register an
affirmative vote for Consent Calendar No. 1. Thank
you, Madam President.

THE CHAIR:

So noted, sir. Senator Looney.

SENATCR LOONEY:

Thank you, Madam President. Once again, it was
mentioned earlier but we wanted to wish Senator
Slossberg a very, very happy 22™ anniversary of her
28" birthday. And for spending the entire day with us
here rather than with her family and - but we wanted
to wish her the best and we did have a cake, which her

husband was - graciously provided earlier in the day.
So again, congratulations and happy birthday.

THE CHAIR:
Happy birthday.

[applause]
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about.
and let's face it. Imean,peopletravaltofaraway

1ands from Connecticut to work for one or two years.
But we have a lot of needs right here in our state

‘and I think people feel a lot of loyalty for the

state.

So I think it will also help keep young people in
our state and -- and have them build networks here
to help them find high quality jobs here.

So thank you for your guestion.

TERCYAK: Thank you very much. See no others --

SENATOR BYE: Thank you.

REP.

TERCYAK: -- thank you very much.

SENATOR BYE: Thank you.

REP.

TERCYAK: Please thank Senator Flexer also. And
while he wasn't in the room before, Senator Looney
is in the room now. So you're up next, Senator.
Then, followed by the previously announced Steve
Werbner and Carolyn Treiss. Welcome.

SENATOR LOONEY: Mr. Chairman, good afternoon. Good

afternoon, Representative Tercyak, members of the
Labor and Public Employees Committee. My name is
Martin Looney, State Senator for the 1lth District
representing New Haven, Hamden, and North Haven.

T'm here to testify in support of geveral bills on
your agenda today. '

First, Senate Bill 428, AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS
FROM WORKPLACE HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION.

_Senate Bill 435, AN ACT PROHIBITING

000163
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NONDISPARAGEMENT CLAUSES IN PUBLIC EMPLOYEE
SEPARATION AGREEMENTS,

Senate Bill 431, AN ACT CONCERNING FOREIGN WORKER

RECRUITMENT FEES.

And Senate Bill 383, AN ACT CONCERNING WORKFORCE
PARTICIPATION THRESHOLDS FOR PUBLIC WORKS
CONTRACTS.

First,OnSehateBill428,ZEQACTPROTECTINGINTERNS
FROM WORKPLACE HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION, as
the job market has become more competitive, there
are many more pecple seeking internships and many
of them are unpaid.

The New York Times reported that employment experts
estimate that undergraduates work in more than one
million internships a year, an estimated half of
which are unpaid, according to Intern Bridge, a
regearch firm that documents this kind of
information.

And unpaid interns are among the most vulnerable
to discrimination and harassment at work because
they have no protecticns for speaking ocut against
bad actors. Interns seek to make good impressions
in the hopes of being hired permanently, network
with colleagues, and receive good references for
other job applications.

This creates and environment where interns can be
subject to exploitation. Connecticut does not
currently protect interns from harassment,
discrimination, or retaliation in our statutes
because they are not considered to be employees
under our state law.

At its core, Senate Bill 428 is about gsafety in the
workplace. Everyone in the workplace should feel
safe and protected and this proposal will go a long

R
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way in ﬁreventing the exploitation of interns by
clarifying that harassment and discrimination
against interns is illegal.

Technically right now, an intern could file an

internal complaint or, if the situation is criminal
in nature, an intern could press criminal charges.
But he or she would not be protected from
workplace-related retaliation for deing so.

Last year, the Connecticut Legislative Employee
Handbook was revised in an effort to protect third
parties from harassment. That is interns,
lobbyists, and other citizens who come to the
Capitol complex. :

Thig year, the General Assembly amended its joint
rules to specifically incorporate this employee
handbook policy. Senate Bill 428 would ensure that
interns acrogs the state, no matter what type of
workplace, will be protected under our laws.

In 2013, a court case in New York state brought to
light that unpaid interns are not considered
employees for purposes of sexual harassment
lawsuits under New York's human rights law. A2And to
rectify this lack of clarity, New York, joining
California and Oregon, enacted a statute to protect
interns from harassment and discrimination.

Illinois and Washington D.C. also have provisions
protecting interns from workplace harassment, but
not from discrimination.

With Senate Bill 428, Connecticut would join these
states. We would unequivocally protect interns
from both harassment and discrimination.

The Bill would not, however, render unpaid interns
employees generally under other Connecticut laws.

000165
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he/gbr/cd LABOR AND PURBRLIC EMPLOYEES 1:30 P.M.
COMMITTEE
REP. TERCYAK: Thank you very much. Thank you, sir.

Shall we ask somebody else if they know the burden
for that?

I do believe a previousg speaker may have mentioned
it or has the information. Identify yourself
again, please.

DR. FRANCESCA LITOW: Hi. It's Dr. Litow.

REP.

So with respect to workman's compensation,
generally the standard is more likely than not.
Again, works really well off a ladder and you broke
your leg.

It's nearly impossible to meet with cancer, to say
that any individual cancer is more likely than not
due to any individual exposure. So in many states
that have presumption, they use language such as
significant contributed to, most significant risk
factor, significant contribution. That -- that's
the kind of language that -- that ig used in other
state statutes. '

TERCYAK: Thank you very much. Okay. Next up is
Carolyn Treiss from PCSW.

And after Carolyn, we will start alternating the
public with the other legislators who are here to
testify on different bills. Thank you. .

Welcome. Please begin.

‘iﬂ&ﬁhib" CAROLYN TREISS: Thank you. Good afternoon, Senator

SHH

....... b3
b6yl
K566

Hwang, Representative Tercyak, and distinguished
members of the Labor Committee.

My name is Carolyn Treiss and I am the executive
director of the Connecticut's Permanent Commission
on the Status of Women. Thank you very much for the



000183

47 February 17, 2015
hc/gbr/cd  LABOR AND PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 1:30 P.M.
: COMMITTEE

opportunity to provide testimony today on several
bills of interest to the PCSW.

You have my written testimony and it's rather
lengthy. So in the interest of time, I am not going
to read it word for word. Rather, I'd just like to
highlight a few key points on a few of the bills
that we've submitted testimony on. :

With regard to proposed Senate Bill 446, AN ACT
CONCERNING THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM "DOMESTIC
WORKER, " the PCSW does have the privilege of sitting
on the Domestic Workers Tagk Force and we have plenty
of opportunity to comment in that forum. So the
only comment I want to make her is that the PCSW
does suggest that specific protections be added to
address situations involving human trafficking.

We do have evidence to suggest that domestic
workers, because they are, in -- in many casesg,
immigrant women, that service in private homes is
a prime area for trafficking to occur. And so we
think that this important and perhaps overlocked
vulnerability of domestic workers should be
carefully considered in any conversations about
protections for these workers.

With regard to proposed Senate Bill 428, AN ACT
- PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE HARASSMENT AND
DISCRIMINATION, the PCSW thanks this bill's
sponsors as well the committee for understanding
the need to close what is a gaping loophole in
workplace harassment and discrimination law.

- As Senator Looney already very elogquently stated,
unpaid interns, by virtue of thelr very status, are
in particularly vulnerable positions with regard
to sexual harassment and discrimination. The power
differential between an intern and supervisor is
gignificant.
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SENATOR WINFIELD: Thankyouforyourtestimony,anditfs
smart for you to listen to your wife.

ROLLO JONES: It is.

SENATOR WINFIELD: I want to thank you for the passion
that you have. I think youmay recognize that there
have been, as you suggested, several bills trying
to -- to get at this issue for too long.

So there are many members who are on the opposite
side of the table from you who understand the issue
and some who understand it directly. And if that
helps at all, I hope it does.

It -- it -- there is hope for dealing with this
because there will continuously be members who are
fighting to find a way to help out people like
yourself and the people who you're here
representing.

Are there gquestions from members of the committee?
If not, thank you for your testimony.

ROLLO JONES: You mean, nobody got no guestions?
A VOICE: They went home.
ROLLO JONES: Thank you.

SENATOR WINFTELD: Next, we will hear from Laura
Callachan, Kim Cerullo, and Patrick Skuret.

LAURA CALLACHAN: Hi. Good evening. My name is Laura
Callachan and I am currently a graduate student
intern from the University of Connecticut interning
with the CT Women's Education and Legal Fund.

I am here teday on behalf of CWEALF and on

Bill Number 428, AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM

000309
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facing.

I'm going to try not to take much time. So interns
-- just to close up. Internships are as valuable
to the interns as they are to the organizations,
which is why -- which is why it is important that
the rights of these interns are a priority in the
state of Connecticut.

I really believe that if Connecticut works to
protect its students, its youth, its future
workforce, we'll be protecting the future of
Connecticut overall.

Thank you for giving me some time to testify today.
If you have any questions, I'm more than happy to
answer them.

SENATOR WINFIELD: Thank you for your testimony. Are
there questions from members of the committee?
Thank you for your time.

Next,wewillhearfrmnKimCerullo,Patrickskuret,
and David Denvir.

KIM CERULLO: Hello. My name is Kim Cerullo. I am also
amaster's student at the University of Connecticut
gchool of Social Work and I am also an intern at
the Connecticut Women's Education and Legal Fund.

Today, however, I am here on behalf of the Campaign
for a Working Connecticut, which CWEALF is a member
of . The Campaign's mission is to promote the
state's economic competitiveness through the
development of effective workforce solutions that
would increase worker skills and advance them and
their families to self-sufficiency.

TheCampaignhasdiversemembership,includingwork
investment boards, unions, chambers of commerce,
and education and training providers.

000311
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150 Trumbot Strest, 204 Flpor
Hartinel, CT 05103
) 15224345 FI 8605221027
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Proposed Bill 427
Public Hearing 2/17/2015

TO: MEMBERS OF THE LABOR AND PUBLIC EMPLOYEES COMMITTEE
DATE: FEBRUARY 17,2015
RE: PROPOSED BILL 427t AN ACT CONCERNING WORKERS’

"COMPENSATION AWARDS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES

I am writing this letter in regard to our support of Senator Looney’s Proposed Bill 427,

Our Commitiee has reviewed Propoesed Bill 427 and supports the Statement of Purpose of
the Bill. We believe that the Bill is warranted given that injured workers are fighting for these
benefits and compensability and the majority of them need to hire attorneys to help them do this
through the Commission. The insurance companies presently do nothing and wait for the injured
worker to fight for reasonable and necessary medical treatment and compensability.

In regard to the specific {anguage of the Bill as it presently stands. our Committee
believes the language needs to be reworked and we would lend our assistance in reworking the
language. The purpose of the Bill is sound and necessary.

Wherefore, the Workers’

Compensation Section of The Connecticut Trial Lawyers

Association (CTLA) and the injured workers that we represent support Senator Laoncy §

_Propased Bill 427.

Thank you for your time.

Very truly yours.

Patrick D. Skuret, Esq.

Chairman of the Workers” Compensation Section of
The Connecticut Trial Lawvers Association (CTLA)
The Law Offices of Daniel D. Skuret. P.C.

215 Division Street, P.O. Box
Ansonia, CT 06401 ))%(\\

(203} 736-9934



000554

56 Town Line Reoad, Rocky Hill, CT 06067
CON N E(T!CUT A F !_"CIO Tel: 860-571-611 Fax: 860-571-6190

Testimony of the Connecticut AFE-CIO before the Labor and Public Employees Committee
February 17%, 2015
Senator Winfield, Representative Tercyak and members of the Labor and Public Employees Committes,

~1am Lori Pelletier and | serve as the Executive Secretary- Treasurer of the Connecticut AFL-CIO. | am
here 1o testify on behalf of the 900 affiliated local unions who represent 200,000 working men and

|
]
|
|

women from every city and town in our great siate in support of:

Proposed S.B. No. 428 AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE HARASSMENT AND

DISCRIMINATION. {LAB)

Regardiess of where you are on the fadder of success you should be free from harassment. Just because

you are an intern doesn't mean you should be the target of an abusive superior,

We appreciate the committee hclding this public hearing.

Respectfulty,

Lori J. Pelletier

Executive Secretary- Treasurer, Connecticut AFL-CIO

1Y
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Public Testimony of the Connecticut Women’s Education and Legal Fund
RE: Proposed Bill No. 428: 4n Act Protecting Interns from Workplace Harassment and
Discrimination
Submitted by: Laura Callachan, MSW Student Intern
February 17, 2015

My name is Laura Callachan and I am a first year graduate student at the University Of
Connecticut School Of Social Work, Additionally, I am an unpaid policy student intern at the
Connecticut Women’s Education and Legal Fund (CWEALF). CWEALTF is a statewide non-
profit organization dedicated to empowering women, girls and their families to achieve equal
opportunities in their personal and professional lives. On behalf of CWEALF, and myself, I am
speaking today in support of Proposed Bill No. 428: An Act Protecting Interns from Workplace
Harassment and Discrimination,

As someone who has been required to obtain yearly internships since the age of nineteen and
throughout my education, [ fully see the importance of protecting the rights of unpaid interns.
Growing numbers of college and graduate students seek internship placements either on their
own initiative or to fulfill requirements of their degree programs. These interns, myself included,
can be found throughout the state in both for-profit and non-profit agencies. With interns being
such an important component of the Connecticut worlforce, why is it that they are not given the
same protections as employees?

In today’s society the weight of a four-year degree is not always the most important factor in
hiring decisions. With more people obtaining post-secondary education, employers have begun
to place higher levels of importance on years of workplace experience rather than level of
education earned. The best way to achieve workplace experience while obtaining higher
education is through internships. Student interns who work for school credit do not demand pay

~ or employer benefits; however because they are not paid members of an agency’s staff they are

not ¢ligible to receive protection from the law. As an unpaid intern who is receiving school
credit, and furthermore, as a person — I believe that I deserve equal protection under the law as
paid interns. I deserve to feel protected, safe, and secure in whatever internship, job, or
volunteer opportunity I pursue. [ have been fortunate not to be a victim of workplace harassment
or discrimination during an internship placement but I am familiar with the stories of interns who
have not been as lucky.

Until recently, New York City was very similar to Connecticut in the sense that they did not have
any laws in place protecting the rights of unpaid interns. After numerous interns stepped forward
with stories of sexual harassment and discrimination from their supervisors, the city finally

decided to make some changes'. . b(g



e Sttt i

000556

I am very thankful for the experiences I had during my undergraduate education in the
Connecticut State University system.  attribute many of my successes, including my acceptance
into the University of Connecticut, to connections made and lessons learned while interning.
Unpaid interns are a valuable part of many organizations and it is important that the rights of
these interns are a priority to the state of Connecticut. I strongly believe that if Connecticut
works to protect its students, its youth, and its interns, it will, in turn, be protecting its. future.

Thank you for allowing me time to present this testimony today. My testimony today is an
example of the learning experience I have had at CWEALF since September. CWEALF's
information and referral line can be of great assistance to anyone who is experience workplace
discrimination or harassment. For more information please go to www.cwealf.org or call 860-
524-0601. ‘ :

! Zach Schonfeld. (March, 2014). The Fight to Protect Unpaid Interns. Taken from
www.newsweek.com -
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
MARGARET E. MORTON GOVERNMENT CENTER
999 BROAD STREET (/‘}
BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT 06604
TELEPHONE (203) 576-7201
FAX (203) 576-3913

- BILL FINCH
‘Mayor

FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 13,2015

TESTIMONY OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT
TOTHE
CON[MITTEE ON LABOR AND PUBLIC EMPLOYEES

S.B. 428: AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE HARRASSMENT
AND DISCRIMINATION

' -Thank_s to Senator Winfield, Representative Tercyak, and members of the committee for the

opportunity to provide testimony on an act to protect interns from workplace harassment and

. discrimination.

Asthe ﬂaayor of our state’s largest city, and a strong advocate for employee rights, T was shocked
- to learn that only four states — California, Illinois, Oregon, and New York — give all interns the

same rights as other employees when it comes to protection from sexual harassment in the
workplace.

The major issue in most states, including Connecticut, is that unpaid interns aren’t technically
considered employees, That’s a significant problem when it comes to sexual harassment,

A case-in-point occurred recently in New York where an unpaid intern at a television network
alleged that a supervisor made unwanted and physical sexual advances on her. But instead of
making a decision based on a thorough and fair investigation of the allegations, a federal court in
New York ruled in 2013 that she had no grounds to sue because she was not an employee under
the law,

This sfory caught the attention of New York lawmakers last year. It served as the inspiration for
passing - and eventually signing into law — landmark legislation (A08201A) in the Empire Statc
that extends sexual harassment protections to unpaid employeses.

T'm torn by this story: on one hand, it’s a great example of lawmakers hearing about a major
problem, and coming together to fix it. On the other hand, it’s another example of our failing to
address a problem until a high-profile example forces us o do so.

. That’s why I’m so supportive of passing this legislation at the state level in Connecticut. Because
I think it’s critical to tackle this issue before it happens to someone else. It’s terrible to think

“Together we are making Bridgeport the cleanest, greenest, safest, most dj}‘ordab!e eity, with schools and neighborhaods that Improve each year”

<
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about, but tomorrow it could be our sons, daughters, granddaughters, grandsons, cousins, nieces,
or nephews.

It’s unacceptable, and it needs to stop now. We need to address this issue. Let’s give all
employees, including all interns, the workplace protections they deserve. It’s the right thing to
do.

[ urge all members of the committee to strongly consider passing this legislation.

Thank you.

Best Regards,
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Connecticut Sexual Assault Crisis Services, Inc.
96 Pitkin Street - East Hartford, CT 06108 - Phone: 860-282-9881 - Fax: 860-291-9335 + www.connsacs.org

Testimony of Cormecticut Sexual Assault Crisis Services
SB 428 An Act Protecting Interns from Workplace
Harassment and Discrimination
Labor and Public Employees Committee, February 17, 2015

Senator Winfield, Representative Tercyak and members of the Labor and Public Employees
Committee. Connecticut Sexual Assault Crisis Services (CONNSACS) supports raised bill SB

428, An Act Protecting Interns from Workplace Harassment and Discrimination. CONNSACS is
the state’s leading voice to end sexual violence and the coalition of our state’s nine community-
based sexual assault crisis services programs, which provide free and confidential sexual assault
crisis counseling and victim advocacy to thousands of women, men and children, of all ages,
each year. ‘

Certified sexual assault victim advocates provided hospital, police and court accompaniment,
support groups, individual counseling, 24/7 hotline support, information and referrals to
victims and survivors of sexual violence throughout the state, and community education and
professional training presentations. CONNSACS also employs specialized post-conviction
vicim advocates who represent victims and their interests throughout the state as part of the
Office of Adult Probation Sex Offender Supervisior: Units and Parole Special Management
Units.

Unpaid interns work in organizations to better their careers and gain real-world experience.
Many interns are college students and participate in unpaid internships for college credit.
Employers also benefit from unpaid interns as a cost savings measure to the company and by
developing potential future employees.

In addition to the lack of compensation, unpaid interns also face a lack of workplace protections
compared to paid employees. If an unpaid intern experiences harassment and discrimination,
they do not have the grounds to file a civil complaint. While criminal proceeding may be an
option, this does not protect interns from being fired for rejecting advances from an employee
ot filing a complaint with human resources. ‘

Since 2013, Oregon, Illinois, California, and New York have all passed legisiation to give
harassment and discrimination protections to unpaid intems’,

CONNSACS does a great deal of community awareness to address sexual harassment and
prevent sexual violence; including Connecticut’s first statewide prevention campaign, Where Do
You Stand? CT. CONNSACS reconunends that any legisiation passed also require interns to

1 Taube, A, (2014 Oct 6) Some States Are Fma.lly Making It Illegal To Sex.:ally Haras:a Unpaid Interns. Retrieved from
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receive sexual harassment training because all employees, paid and unpaid, should know their
rights and to be able to identify harassment and discrimination?, -

Thank you.

Jillian Gilchrest, MSW

Director of Public Policy & Communication
860-282-9881 .
lgilehrest@connsacs.org

2 Where Do You Stand? Retrieved from i
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" ‘Commission on’

- Human Rights and

~ Opportunities
Memo
To: Labor and Public Employees Committee
From: . Tanya A. Hughes, Executive Director
Date: February 17, 2015
Re: - 4B, AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE

HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION

The Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities SUPPORTS SB 428, An Act Protecting
interns from Workplace Harassment and Discrimination.

Federal law provides that paid intermns are considered employees. The Commission on
Human Rights and Opportunities interprets our current state laws to cover unpaid interns as
well. That position has not been tested by Connecticut courts, but courts in other
jurisdictions have ruled against unpaid interns. SB 428 will remove all doubt in the courts of
Connecticut.

We believe Connecticut should join other states that have passed laws to protect unpaid

interns from workplace harassment and discrimination. Oregon, New York, lilincis and

California have all passed laws protecting interns from discrimination in recent years. Texas
and Michigan are currently considering similar laws.

Interns are easily victimized. They undertake months of free labor hoping to gain real world
experience and make connections in their chosen figlds. They do not come to work to be
sexually harassed or called foul words because of their race or color. They may need
accommodation because of a physical or mental disability.

Receiving a pay check should not be a difference maker when important workplace rights
are at stake. Because interns are often young with little workplace experience putting this

legal requirement in place alerts all employers that discrimination and harassment in the

workplace is illegal for alfl.

To clarify current state law the Commission proposes the following amendment to the
definition of "employee”in CONN, GEN. STAT. § 46a-51(9):

(9) “Employee” means any person employed by an employer,_including an
unpaid intern, but shall not include any individual employed by such
individual's parents, spouse or child, or in the domestic service of any person;

Thank you for willingness to correct this oversight in Connecticut statutes.
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State Capitol
Ha.rrford Connecticut 06106-1591

132 Fort Hale Road
New Haven, Connecticut 06512

Home: 203-468-8829
Capitol: 860-240-8600

2tate of Connecticut Toll-free: 1-800-842-1420
SENATE www.SenatorLocney,cga, cr.gov

SENATOR MARTIN M. LOONEY
PresipenT Pro TEMPORE

Eleventh District

February 17, 2015

Good afternoon Senator Winfield, Representative Tercyak and members of the Labor and Public
Employees Committee. I am here to testify in support of SB 428, AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS
FROM WORKPLACE HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION, SB 435, AN ACT PROHIBITING
NONDISPARAGEMENT CLAUSES IN PUBLIC EMPLOYEE SEPARATION AGREEMENTS, SB 383 AN
ACT CONCERNING WORKFORCE PARTICIPATION THRESHOLDS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS,
and SB 431 AN ACT CONCERNING FOREIGN WORKER RECRUITMENT FEES.

SB 428, AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE HARASSMENT AND
"DISCRIMINATION

As the job market has become more competitive, there are many more people seeking internships,
Many of them are unpaid. The New York Times reports, “[e]Jmployment experts estimate that
undergraduates work in more than one million internships a year, an estimated half of which are
unpaid, according to Intern Bridge, a research firm."?

Unpaid interns are among the most vulnerable to discrimination and harassment at work because
they have no protections for speaking out against bad actors. [nterns seek to make good
impressions in the hopes of being hired permanently, network with colleagues, and receive good
references for other job applications. This creates an envirenment where interns can be subject to
exploitation. Connecticut does not currently protect interns from harassment, discrimination or
retaliation in our statutes because they are not considered to be “employees” under our state law.

At its core, Senate bill 428 is about safety in the workplace. Everyone in a workplace should feel
safe and protected. This proposal will go a long way in preventing the exploitation of interns by
clarifying that harassment and discrimination against interns is illegal. Technically, right now an
intern could file an internal complaint or, if the situation is criminal in nature, an intern could press
criminal charges, but he or she would not be protected from workplace related retaliation for doing
s0. :

Last year the Connecticut legislative employee handhook was revised in an effort to protect “third
parties” from harassment; (ie. interns, lobbyists, and other citizens who come to the capitol
complex). This year, the legislature amended the Joint Rules to specifically incorporate this
employee handbook policy. Senate Bill 428 would ensure that interns across the state, no matter
what type of workplace, will be protected under our laws. -

In 2013, a court case in New York brought to light that unpaid interns are not considered
employees for purposes of sexual harassment lawsuits under New York’s human rights law. To
rectify this lack of clarity, New York, joining California and Oregon, enacted a statute to protect

_interns from harassment and discrimination. Ilinois and Washington, D.C. have provisicns
protecting interns from workplace harassment, but not discrimination.

' Steven Greenhouse, "Judge Rules That Movie Studic Should Have Been Paying Interns,” The New

York Times, Jung, 11, 2013.
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With Senate bill 428, Connecticut would join these states. We wouid unequivocally protect interns
from both harassment and discrimination, The bill would not, however, render unpaid interns
“employees” generally, under other Connecticut laws.

SB 435, AN ACT PROHIBITING NONDISPARAGEMENT CLAUSES IN PUBLIC EMPLOYEE

' SEPARATION AGREEMENTS

Non-disparagement clauses are most comumon in employer-employee relationships at private
companies and upon an employee's departure. They generally exist because businesses need to

' safeguard their proprietary information, formulas, business plans and strategies, and to enhance or

maintain a business’ reputation in a competitive marketplace. However, in the public sector, non-
disparagement clauses arguably defy our laws requiring public sector transparency, or at least fly
in the face of the spirit of such laws.

This issue arose very recently in Connecticut, with the sudden resignation of Michael Gargano, who
was Provost for the Connecticut State Colleges and Universities system for only ten months, from
DBecember 2013 until his sudden resignation on November 11, 2014. Apparently, part of Gargano’s
resignation included the signing of a separation agreement which: 1) allowed him to continue being
paid his biweekly salary of $8603.31 for nearly 16 weeks, from November 11 through Feb. 28, 2015
and 2] contained a “non-disparagement clause”, which apparently prohibited him from publicly
discussing the circumstances of his departure. '

The Hartford Courant, in a December 10, 2014 editorial, criticized the separation agreement, and its
non-disparagement clause, as “a way of keeping public information from the public, [which] should
not be part of government work.”

I believe the Courant, and other media outlets whick criticized the use of a non-disparagement
clause in the controversial departure of a high ranking public official, were correct, Senate bill 435
prohibits these types of “non-disparagement” or gag clauses for state employees, even when such
employees receive extra monetary consideration for their enactment. Such clauses are an
unacceptable affront to Freedom of Information and open government principles.

SB'383 AN ACT CONCERNING WORKFORCE PARTICIPATION THRESHOLDS FOR PUBLIC

WORKS CONTRACTS

SB 383 would require that state public works contracts use the diversity standards that are
currently used by the City of New Haven. Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 46a-68d currently
requires every contractor on a state public works project to have an affirmative action plan
approved by the Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, However, it is my
understanding that the goals are not particularly demanding and that there is not sufficient on-site
monitoring. The City of New Haven has more demanding workforce diversity standards for
coatractors who hold contracts with the City than the state does for its contractors. Specifically,
coniractors must comply with standards for each class of work listed in the contract that require
that 25% of the individuals be from a minerity group and 6.9% of the individuals be female. The
City, through the New Haven Commission on Equal Opportunity, has enforcement mechanisms and
staff traired in this area, This issue is particularly important for state contracts in urban centers;
the diversity of the contractors’ workforces should attempt to mirror the diversity of the city's
residents. It was evident during the Gateway construction project in New Haven that the actual

‘workforce diversity was minimal. Contractors who receive state contracts should be held

accountablé to provide equal employment opportunity in their workforces. Holding contactors
accountable to hire a diverse workforce in our urban areas would be a positive step toward
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~Before the
Labor and Public Employees Committee
February 17, 2015

Senators Winfield and Hwang, Representatives Tercyak and Rutigliano, and distinguished members of the
Labor Committee, my name is Carolyn Treiss and I am the Executive Director of Connecticut’s Permanent
Commission on the Status of Women (PCSW). As a non-partisan arm of the General Assembly, the PCSW
monitors, critiques and recommends changes to legislation to inform public policy, and assesses programs and
practices in State agencies for their effect on the state’s women. Thank you for this opporttunity to provide
testimony today on several bills of interest to the PCSW.

Proposed S.B. No. 446 AN ACT CONCERNING THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM
"DOMESTIC WORKER"

Acknowledging that Connecticut’s current statutory landscape does not adequately protect the rights of
domestic workers in Connecticut, in the 2014 Legislative Session the General Assembly passed Special Act 14-17,
which created a Task Force on Domestic Workers to study issues involving demestic workers and to make
recommendations for legislative initiatives to address the issues identified. The PCSW is honored to have a seat at
that table, as domestic workers, a female-dominated profession, have historically received wages well below the
poverty line and continue to be ewccluded from some of the most fundamental labor protections other workers in
Connecticut enjoy.

The Task Force is currently exploring the definition of domestc worker and has not yet reached a consensus. The
PCSW believes that last year’s bill, H.B. 5527, as originally raised in committee, offers 2 good starting place for
discussions on the definition and on the rights that should be afforded domestic workers. H.B. 5527 identified the
following key criteria in the definition of domestic worker:

» The individual is paid by the owner of a private dwelling, to perform work in that dwelling, maintaining
the home itself or caring for the young, disabled, ili or elderly inhabitants of that dwelling;
. @ Domestic worker does not include a babysitier whose wozk is itregular, intermittent or of a casual
nature;
e Domestic worker does not include personal care attendants providing services under to state-funded
programs,

2

A



000671

It may be advisable to add a clarification that a domestic worker may live in the private dwelling in which she
works or may maintzin a residence ourside of the ptivate dwelling, Another consideration is whether the domestc
worker is employed by an agency or directly by the owner of the private dwelling and whether that distinction is a
mesningful one in terms of necessary protections.

In terms of protections, H.B. 5527 offered domestic workers coverage under state minimum wage and overtime
laws, paid time off, protection for on-the-job injuries, protection from harassment and discrimination, privacy
protections and industry-specific workplace protections. The PCSW would recommend additional protections
against human trafficking, as recommended by some members of the Trafficking in Persons Council. Since
domestic wortkets are primarily immigrant women, service in private homes is a prime area for human trafficking.
In 2013, the International Institate of Connecticut served 54 human trafficking clients, and 11 of those were in
domestic labor tratficking situations (10 ferale and 1 male);' and in 2012, the National Human Trafficking
Resource Center identified 14 potential human trafficking matters in Connecticut, including two domestic worker
cases? Additional monitoring and surveillance by governmenta! entities will increase the detection and prevention

of human trafficking.

PCSW again thanks the committee for including our voice on the Task Force and looks forward to our
continuing discussions on this issue so crifical to so many women working without protections in vulnerable work
situations.

Proposed S.B. No. 428 AN ACT PROTECTING INTERNS FROM WORKPLACE
HARASSMENT AND DISCRIMINATION

The PCSW thanks this bill’s sponsors as well as the committee for understanding the need to close this
gaping loophole in workplace harassment and discrimination law. It may come as a surprise to some that unpaid
interns who experience sexual harassment or disesimination in the workplace have no recourse under federal or
state law, as they do not fall within the definifion of “employee.” A select few states, including Oregon and Tllinols,
as well as New York City and Washington, D.C., have made changes to their laws to provide protections to unpaid
interns and the Texas legislature is currently considering such a proposal.

Unpaid interns, by virtue of their very status, are in particularly vulnerable positions with regard to sexual
harassment and discrimination. The power differentizl between an intern and supervisor is significant — interns are
trying to build a reputadon, make a positive impression and leave the internship with a good reference for future

~ employment opportunities — all of which can be exploited by unscrupulous supervisors wishing to take advantage of

the sirvation. Without protection against retaliation for making a complaint, interns’ voices are effectively silenced
while discriminadon against — and harassment of — interns can go unchecked in the workplace.

The PCSW urges the committee’s suppott for this proposal and would respectfully welcome the

opportunity to work with the committee on drafting the specifics of the language.

Proposed H.B. No. 5848 AN ACT CONCERNING WOMEN RE-ENTERING THE
WORKFORCE. : '

This bill would create a workforce re-entty program, administered by the Department of Labor, aimed
specifically at wornen returning to work after absences from the workforce. It would provide technical training,
interview skills and other ttaining appropriate for women returning to work, The PCSW applauds the bill’s

! International Institute of Connecticut (March 4, 2014).
* National Human Teafficking Resouzce Center {2012), Data Breakdown: Connecticut State Repoct.
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